
CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD 
TOWN HALL 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2012 

 
APROVED 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Charles Russell, Chair; Winslow Ladue, John Owen, Ed Stone, 
Dennis Delaney (departed 9:20 p.m.). 
ADMINISTRATION: Dean Bloch, Selectboard Assistant. 
OTHERS:  David Stewart, David McNally, John  Snow, Meg Modley, Chris Davis, Ed 
Sulva, Robert Mack, Jenny Cole, Ellie Russell, Heather Manning, David Miskell, Mary 
Mead, Robin Pierce, Kate Lampton, John Limanek, Gordon Brown, Bill Harris-Fraser, 
Ruth DeFreest, Gary Pittman, Fritz Tegatz, Diane Nichols, David Nichols, Catherine 
Hughes, Jennifer Chiodo, Caleb Kiley, Carol Casey, Charlotte Citizen, and others. 
 
(NOTE: the published agenda was heard out of order, but appears in order for continuity.) 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Russell called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. 
 
DISCUSSION OF ORGANIZATIONAL ISSUES WITH CHARLOTTE 
VOLUNTEER FIRE & RESCUE SERVICES 
Mr. Snow reviewed that the Corporate Board still needs a Selectboard representative and 
a second community member on the Board. Mark McDermott was appointed to fill one 
of the two community positions. Next steps include filling the final Board members, 
exploring how to best execute services and clarify the budget process. There will be no 
changes to the Corporate Board structure at this time, said Mr. Snow. 
 
Mr. Davis said that enacting bylaw updates need to be done. 
 
Mr. Snow said that they had a short list of community candidates for the Corporate Board 
and they will try to fulfill objectives within a month. Also, the Corporate Board would 
like to publicly solicit for Advisory Board members utilizing the Charlotte News, Town 
website, etc. The articles call for consultation with the Selectboard on an Advisory Board. 
The Corporate Board would present a recommended group for Selectboard input, said 
Mr. Snow. 
 
Mr. Owen suggested following the example given by the Middlebury’s Executive 
Director. Appoint people with an interest in serving, said Mr. Owen. Mr. Ladue 
suggested that if the Corporate Board didn’t utilize an Advisory Board, or community 
appointees were not appointed then it is not worth having an Advisory Board.  
 
Mr. Russell said that one item discussed at a previous meeting was Strategic Planning 
with an Advisory Board to help the process. Mr. Snow explained that the Advisory Board 
role was more descriptive in the articles. He would try to flesh out how such a committee 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 2 

could participate and contribute, said Mr. Snow. Mr. Davis said that the articles talk 
about outreach.  
 
Mr. Russell said that the Town Attorney has suggested drafting a legal agreement to 
clarify what is the Fire and Rescue’s and Town’s ownership. For example, the Town 
provides funds to purchase a truck and Fire and Rescue rigs it out with their funds, said 
Mr. Russell.  
 
Mr. Stone clarified that a written “MOU” instrument was needed so everyone understood 
who owned what, and voted to approve it.  In 1996 the Selectboard and Corporate Board 
met and spoke about patient billing – who would get the money, which was the Town. It 
was a simple document. An MOU can be changed every 5 years, for example. The 
Selectboard could come up with an MOU on the Town’s part, and the Fire and Rescue 
could come up with an MOU on their part. Then we could see if they mesh, said Mr. 
Stone. 
 
Mr. Snow said he was hearing that they were documenting for clarity of what they were 
doing already, acquisition and disposition of equipment, and the flow of funds. We don’t 
foresee a change in structure, reiterated Mr. Snow. Mr. McNally suggested that when 
there was a Corporate Board and Advisory Board then there could be written agreements 
to clarify gray areas. 
 
Mr. Snow explained that the Corporate Board met monthly on the 3rd Tuesday at 6:00 
p.m. The membership met quarterly and was held jointly with the Board meeting. The 
membership needed to be educated on the organization articles so that all are on the same 
page, said Mr. Snow. Mr. Russell said that communication between the Town and Fire 
and Rescue should be improved. For example; the Fire and Rescue minutes of meetings 
should be sent to the Town, said Mr. Russell. Mr. McNally pointed out that the Corporate 
Board was a private, not public, entity. A goal was to post Corporate Board minutes on 
the Fire and Rescue website, and to e-mail the minutes to the membership. Rescue 
minutes were sent out monthly via e-mail. The Corporate Board was putting a lot of 
effort into improving the decision making process, said Mr. McNally.  
 
Mr. Snow reviewed that the Corporate Board was the only legal entity. The Rescue and 
Fire departments were both ‘agencies’ of the Corporate Board. Both agencies submit 
reports and those reports become a part of the Corporate Board minutes, said Mr. Snow.  
Mr. Russell explained that an e-mail to a Selectboard member became a public document.  
 
Mr. Russell said that a Selectboard member serving on the Corporate Board might have 
conflicts of interest. Mr. Stone asked if a Selectboard member should be on the Corporate 
Board, or should a Selectboard representative be appointed such as Kay Gault had been. 
Mr. McNally clarified that Ms. Gault was a Town employee that gave the department 
administrative assistance, but was not a Selectboard representative on the Corporate 
Board. Mr. Sulva said that there should be a Selectboard member on the Board, not a 
proxy. Mr. Snow said that when a legislator was appointed to the UVM Board, they 
accepted a fiduciary responsibility to UVM. If it was felt there was a conflict then the 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 3 

Selectboard, or a designee, could declare a conflict and recuse her/him self, suggested 
Mr. Snow. 
 
Mr. Mack asked if a there was a Fire or Rescue personnel policy available to the public, 
and if Corporate Board minutes were available to the public and if so, when. Mr. Mack 
handed out copies of written questions to the Selectboard and Fire and Rescue 
representatives. 
 
Ms. Mead asked if the Selectboard Assistant would receive Corporate Board minutes. 
Mr. Russell said that he has received two sets of minutes. 
 
Mr. Delaney expressed concern that he was not hearing how closer the entities were to 
curing problems to function together smoothly. 
 
Mr. Ladue explained that he was interested in serving on the Corporate Board, but did not 
have time. Mr. Snow asked if it was possible to appoint someone and then work through 
the issues. Mr. McNally read the Board articles that state that “…one (Corporate Board 
seat) shall represent the Selectboard.” 
 
Mr. Russell noted that the CVFRS audit would be presented at the 10/22/2012 
Selectboard meeting. Some reporting aspects of the audit may speak to the private/public 
questions, or not, said Mr. Russell. 
 
To Do: 

• Need to appoint a second community person to the Corporate Board. 
• The Selectboard needs to identify a Corporate Board representative. 
• Draft a legal document for clarity of what was owned by the Town or owned by 

the Fire and Rescue related to how the entities interface, acquisition and 
disposition of equipment, and the flow of funds. 

• Add the Selectboard e-mail addresses to the Fire and Rescue list to receive 
minutes of meetings. 

 
Next meeting of the CVFRS and the Selectboard was scheduled for Monday, 10/22/2012 
at 6:00 p.m. The CVFRS audit/budget at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO AGENDA 
None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Ms. Cole asked if the Town would allow spending the some of the $2,000 raised from 
selling Town T-shirts for special projects, such as Town Hall landscaping, Thorp Barn, or 
roof repairs versus returning the funds to the Town general fund. Mr. Owen said that not 
all of the expenses have been submitted. The committee should meet and discussion what 
special projects to consider, said Mr. Owen. 
 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 4 

Mr. Ladue asked for an update on the status of the Town signs with the new design. Mr. 
Russell reported that the signs were completed, but not installed yet.  
 
MINUTES: September 24 
MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Owen, to approve the Charlotte 
Selectboard minutes of 09/24/2012 as written, with additions/corrections. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Delaney); motion carried. 
 
ENERGY COMMITTEE  
Jennifer Chiodo and Catherine Hughes, Energy Committee members, reviewed an RFP 
for a proposed feasibility study to replace the current heating system with either a 
biomass or ground source heat pumps. Three bids were received. Two of the proposals 
exceeded the $5,000 budget. The bid from LN was revised to $5,000 plus expenses for 40 
hours of work. The committee was seeking Selectboard approval for the expenditure of 
$6,000. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Owen, to approve an allocation of up to 
$6,000 for a Feasibility Study for the Village District heating proposal. 
DISCUSSION: 
Ms. Hughes suggested using some of the $3,000 that the Energy Committee turned 
back in from last year to make up for the added cost. 
 
Mr. Russell asked that the study include benefits of replacing the heating systems in 
Town buildings with biomass. Consider costs versus current costs, ground source 
heating pumps that would address cooling and heating, cost of equipment, cost of 
construction, price thresholds, and possible grants, suggested Mr. Russell. 
 
Mr. Mack asked to have a hard copy of the proposal. 
 
Mr. Owen asked for clarification regarding saving.  
 
Mr. Ladue explained that he discussed bio fuels systems in Vermont with a state 
colleague. The point is that such systems have been used and were efficient, said Mr. 
Ladue. 
 
Mr. Delaney asked how likely it was that a grant would be successful. He expressed 
concern that one year the committee didn’t spend their  budgeted money, and then 
another year they spent more. Asking for an extra $1,000 was ‘loose’ budgeting, said 
Mr. Delaney.  
 
Ms. Chiodo said the committee couldn’t fully fund the $500,000 to $1 million 
expense for such a system. The Town would need to bond for it, said Ms. Chiodo. 
Ms. Hughes said that the feasibility study would examine any savings.    
 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 5 

Mr. Russell suggested seeing if the bidder could do a study for less money. Ms. 
Hughes said that LM came down a lot. She believed that the Town would get good 
information for the dollars spent, said Ms. Hughes. 
 
Mr. Russell suggested that the extra $1,000 could come from the General Fund. 
 
Ms. Chiodo said that not doing the study was another option. The Town could put in 
the same type of system that it has, said Ms. Chiodo. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 abstention (Mr. Delaney); motion carried. 
 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR AIR CONDITIONERS, AIR HANDLERS 
AND ENERGY RECOVERY UNITS – action item 
Mr. Russell recused himself. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Owen, seconded by Mr. Ladue, to approve a Maintenance 
Agreement for air conditioners, air handlers and energy recovery units with New 
England Air Systems for an amount of $1,340 as presented. 
DISCUSSION: 
Mr. Owen noted that a second bidder, Alliance Mechanicals, from Essex Junction, 
bid $1,575. Was that competitive with the New England Air bid, asked Mr. Owen.  
Ms. Mead said that the Town had used New England Air Systems in the past and 
was not satisfied with their work. Alliance Mechanicals came into the Town Hall 
and looked at the systems in place. New England did not, stated Ms. Mead. 
 
Ms. Chiodo said that New England Air has changed their service group. Service is 
all they do and the company is a different organization than 5 years ago, said Ms. 
Chiodo. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 recused (Mr. Russell); motion carried. 
 
Mr. Russell rejoined the Selectboard. 
 
CHARLOTTE HOUSING TRUST GRANT PROGRAM, GRANT CRITERIA 
AND COMMITTEE ISSUES – discussion only 
Gordon Brown, Ellie Russell, and Robin Pierce, Charlotte Housing Trust Fund 
Committee members, and David Nichols, grant applicant, reviewed a written grant 
proposal and three options to address funding a proposed affordable housing project.  
 
Mr. Owen asked if the current tenant’s $50,000 income was a one-year income, or an on-
going income level. Mr. Nichols replied that it was what the tenant made, and he assumed 
it would be the same. This tenant has been living in the unit for 21 years and is a good 
tenant. It is an existing building with existing tenants, said Mr. Nichols. Mr. Owen asked 
if the grant was for the entire building. Ms. Russell replied yes. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Ladue, to approve a Charlotte Housing 
Trust Grant, Option C, for combined rents for two tenants that do not exceed 
income limit criteria for the David and Diane Nichols grant application. 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 6 

DISCUSSION: 
Mr. Delaney expressed concern that the grant income limit criteria has been 
compromised, and suggested telling the individual making $50,000 that he has “x” 
amount of time to move. Mr. Nichols stated that he has been a good tenant and has 
been there for 21 years. He would not tell that tenant to move, said Mr. Nichols. 
 
Mr. Owen asked that under Option C, if and when that tenant moved any future 
tenants would come under the income limit criteria. Mr. Nichols said yes. 
 
AMENDMENT to the motion by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Ladue, that when the 
current renters move out the next renter would met the income requirements set 
forth by the Affordable Housing Committee. 
DISCUSSION: 
Ms. Russell said that when Mr. Nichols signed the agreement it would include the 
motion language in the document. 
 
Mr. Russell pointed out that the agenda item was not warned as an action item. The 
committee could consider the proposed motion as a straw poll of the Selectboard. 
The Affordable Housing Trust Fund Committee should provide an agreement for a 
warned agenda item at the next meeting of the Selectboard, suggested Mr. Russell. 
 
The motion was withdrawn by Mr. Stone and Mr. Ladue. 
 
Ms. Russell reviewed that a new Affordable Housing Committee should be appointed. 
That committee would update the current status of affordable housing available in 
Charlotte, publicize what the committee was doing and identify possible projects. The 
Affordable Housing Trust Fund Committee only administers the fund, clarified Ms. 
Russell. Mr. Stone said that a 3 or 4 step program was getting more difficult. The 
committee rules should be revisited to simplify them, stated Mr. Stone. 

 
Mr. Ladue asked if there were 3 or 4 people that would like to serve on the Trust Fund 
committee, and suggested that when Trust Fund committee members were appointed they 
may be interested in taking over the extra duties. Ms. Russell replied that the committee 
was seeking a change in the committee charge. 

 
Mr. Russell suggested waiting until after the budget process in February to discuss 
possible changes to the committee. 

 
KILEY FAMILY TRUST – PRELIMINARY REVIEW OF OPEN SPACE 
AGREEMENT – discussion only 
Caleb Kiley, co-applicant, handed out copies of a site map and reviewed a proposed PRD 
three-lot subdivision of a 117 acre parcel located partially in Hinesburg and Charlotte on 
Garen Road. The property would include 50 percent open space designated in the back 
half of the property that would include most of the existing woods. Lot 2 with 80 acres 
would be purchased by two of his brothers and include deed restrictions for one possible 
future subdivision into two 40 acre lots. There was a question related to open space if Lot 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 7 

2 was subdivided again at some point - would it require more open space, or would the 
open space stay the same, asked Mr. Kiley. 
 
Mr. Owen asked if the Planning Commission addressed the open space issue. Mr. Kiley 
said that the minimum road frontage issue came up at the Sketch Plan review level. The 
Town Planner suggested a PRD. The family was OK with the open space requirements, 
said Mr. Kiley. Mr. Russell read a Sketch Plan letter regarding the proposed subdivision. 
Chris and Gus Kiley have not decided the future of Lot 2 yet and the Planning 
Commission was aware of the question, said Mr. Russell. 
 
Mr. Kiley said that the Planning Commission asked for a specified building envelope on 
Lot 3. Mr. Bloch said that issue did not have to be addressed by the Selectboard. 
 
Mr. Kiley asked if farm roads could go through the forest, or agricultural fields. Mr. 
Bloch said that farm roads were an allowed use. 
 
Mr. Bloch explained that a discussion was held with Chris regarding tent sites, which 
have been done under other open space agreements. 
 
WHISKEY BAY PARKING – discussion only 
Mr. Harris-Fraser, Recreation Committee representative, handed out a colored site map of 
the Whiskey Bay area and reviewed parking options. 
 
Mr. Stone asked if there were any concerns that a parking site wouldn’t happen until June 
2013. Mr. Harris-Fraser replied yes, and explained that several meetings have been held 
with stakeholders. The Charlotte Road Commissioner provided an estimate for 6 parking 
slots at the Town owned lot. There is an existing culvert that would need to be replaced at 
that site and 3 parking spaces constructed on the south side of the site. There were some 
large rocks that would be used to delineate the Town owned beach side from a 
leaseholder lot. A locking gate would be installed to prevent parking down at the beach, 
said Mr. Harris-Fraser. 
 
There was further discussion regarding the number of cars that park near the beach; 
planning a turning circle for the Town plow between the Road Commissioner and Erick 
Findley; and paying for a new culvert and signage through the Highway budget. 
 
TRAIL STEWARDSHIP PLAN – discussion only 
Mr. Limanek, Trails Committee representative, handed out copies of a draft Trail System 
Stewardship plan for Board review.  
 
Following discussion the Selectboard suggested changes to the plan: 

• Bullet #1, change the words “…one hour after dawn to one hour before dusk…” 
to read “…sunrise to sunset…”. 

• Bullet #3, (2) – change the wording “…or maintenance activities on…” to read 
“…to cross, or accessing…”. 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 8 

• Add the Nichols open space/trail agreement as an appendix so that people would 
know that “…the Nichols trails would be open an hour after dawn and one hour 
before dusk…”. 

 
Mr. Limanek would edit the draft document and return for approval of the document at a 
future meeting. 
 
(NOTE: the Selectboard Chair called a break from 9:00 p.m. to 9:02 p.m.) 
 
CHARLOTTE SENIOR CENTER – REQUEST TO WAIVE $500 APPLICATION 
FEE FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR CHANGE TO LIGHTING PLAN – action 
item 
MOTION by Mr. Ladue, seconded by Mr. Stone, to approve a request by the 
Charlotte Senior Center to waive a $500 application fee for Site Plan review for a 
change to the current lighting plan. 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried. 
 
BURNS PROPERTY MOU – discussion only   
Ms. Lampton reviewed a proposed Burns property Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) revision, dated 08/23/2012. Next steps would look at specifics, said Ms. 
Lampton. 
 
Mr. Stone and Mr. Owen spoke in support of the draft document. 
 
Following discussion the Selectboard members suggested changes and possible additions: 

• #1, add the word “floating” to the “Mack Farm trail”. 
• #3, include the number of acres, the number of acres developed, and the number 

of acres that could be developed. 
• #4, there was a question if future affordable housing would also be exempt from 

the Town’s 25 percent development limit. 
• Consider adding use or sale of the Town’s septic capacity, and potential for 

selling the flea market area. 
 
Mr. Delaney asked that the Town Attorney review the draft document. 
 
NICHOLS CONSERVATION AND TRAIL PROJECT – action item 
Ms. Lampton reviewed a request to re-apportion a previously approved Conservation 
Fund grant of $270,000 via two checks – one to David and Diane Nichols for $21,500 
and one to the Vermont Land Trust for $248,500. This would allow the process to 
proceed much quicker than having the Vermont Land Trust give the Nichol’s a check and 
then having to process two property tax transfers, which would be cumbersome. It was 
not believed that this would set a precedent for purchasing trail easements, explained Ms. 
Lampton. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to approve an apportion of a 
previously approved Conservation Fund grant of $270,000 to the Nichols Farm 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                    10/15/2012 PAGE 9 

conservation project by check of $21,500 to David and Diane Nichols and $248,500 
to the Vermont Land Trust; this apportionment is conditioned on the transfer of a 
trail easement directly to the Town of Charlotte; the acquisition of the trail 
easement in this manner is specific to the completion of the Nichols Farm 
conservation project and acquisition of a trail easement as part of the conservation 
of highly significant agricultural lands, natural areas and scenic resources. 
VOTE: 5 ayes; motion carried.  
 
REPAIRS TO TOWN HALL – discussion only 
Mr. Russell reviewed pervious repairs to Town Hall windows and the need for more 
window replacements. The contractor has provided an estimate based on time and 
materials. A question was if the work should be put out to bid, said Mr. Russell. 
 
The Selectboard would consider approval of the work at the next meeting. 
 
CCS PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE – action item 
Consideration of an appointment to the CCS Planning Sub-committee was tabled. 
 
SELECTBOARD UPDATES 
Financial Workshop – October 30, 2012 
The Selectboard scheduled a VLCT work session in Charlotte, October, 30, 2012, 4:00 
p.m. – 8:00 p.m. A work session agenda would be considered at the October 22, 2012 
Selectboard meeting.  
 
Media Equipment 
Mr. Ladue reported that media equipment for the conference room, such as large flat 
screens, projectors, etc, may be available for purchase through a state contract. 
 
Town Christmas Party 
Mr. Stone reported that the Town Volunteer Christmas Party was scheduled for 
December 8, 2012, at the Senior Center. Staff would contact VLCT regarding insurance 
requirements for serving alcohol. Serving wine could be limited from 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 
p.m. to address concerns. 
 
APPROVE WARRANTS TO PAY BILLS 
The Selectboard members signed bills and warrants. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION by Mr. Stone, seconded by Mr. Owen, to adjourn the meeting. 
VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Delaney); motion carried. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:42 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, Kathlyn Furr, Recording Secretary 
 


